CHARLES E. GRASSLEY, IDWA, CHAIRMAN

ORRIN G. HATCH, UTAH DIANNE FEINSTEIN, CALIFORNIA

LINDSEY O. GRAHAM, SOUTH CAROLINA  PATRICK J. LEAHY, VERMONT

JOHN CORNYN, TEXAS RICHARD J. DURBIN, ILLINOIS

MICHAEL S. LEE, UTAH SHELDON WHITEHOUSE, RHODE ISLAND "

TED CRUZ, TEXAS AMY KLOBUCHAR, MINNESOTA !t I “‘ttd - tatEB %Enatt
BEN SASSE, NEBRASKA AL FRANKEN, MINNESOTA ba iy,

JEFF FLAKE, ARIZONA CHRISTOPHER A, COONS, DELAWARE

MIKE CRAFO, IDAHO RICHARD BLUMENTHAL, CONNECTICUT COMMITTEE ON THE JUDICIARY

THOM TILLIS, NORTH CAROLINA MAZIE K. HIRONO, HAWAII

ACHIN ENNED Y, LOLISLARA WASHINGTON, DC 20510-6275

Kovan L. Davis, Chief Counsel and Staff Director
Jenmirer Duck, Democratic Staff Director

September 20, 2017

The Honorable James Mattis
Secretary of Defense

U.S. Department of Defense
1000 Defense Pentagon
Washington, DC 20301-1000

Dear Secretary Mattis:
I appreciate your continued efforts at reducing waste at all levels of the military.

Today, I am writing to you on a related matter -- my ongoing investigation
regarding a joint Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA)/Department of Defense
(DoD) effort to modify a counternarcotics aircraft, named the Global Discovery Program
(program).!

At my request, the DoD Office of the Inspector General (DODIG) recently
completed an audit report that determined the Office of the Deputy Assistant Secretary
of Defense for Counternarcotics and Global Threats (DASD CN&GT) failed to effectively
manage the program.2 Indeed, the DODIG report reached this startling conclusion: “The
DASD CN&G wasted at least $64.8 million on the Global Discovery Program .....
Consequently, the DoD received no benefit for its more than 7 years’ work.”s The
aircraft involved, an ATR 42-500, is a hangar queen. Aside from a small number of
routine transport missions, it has been up on jacks in a hangar and never flew a single
counter-narcotics mission in Afghanistan as intended. It’s now to be sold at auction.4

In July, you issued a memorandum (memo) on the DoD mission and stewardship
responsibilities. In it, you specifically focus on the need for “budget discipline,” and
stated that you “expect leaders at all levels in the Department to exercise the utmost
degree of stewardship over every penny we spend.” I believe the DoD spending on the
counternarcotics plane failed to live up to that responsibility.

While three DoD offices responded to the DODIG audit report, not a single
official took any responsibility. The Under Secretary of Defense for Policy stated that
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their office was “not directly responsible for the execution for the contracted services in
question.”s The DASD CN&GT stated that their office was a “resource sponsor for the
program, but was not directly responsible for the oversight or execution of contracted
services that ultimately failed to complete the aircraft modification.”® The US Central
Command absolved the DASD CN&GT stating, “[W]e believe the report incorrectly
assigns responsibility for the failures of the program principally to the DASD CN&GT
office. The report does not sufficiently address the role of the DoD contracting agencies
whose primary role was Global Discovery program management and contract
execution.””

As DoD officials are passing the buck, the American taxpayers are left holding the
bag yet again. In line with your call to “take aggressive steps to end waste in the
department,” I ask that a DoD review be conducted to determine who is responsible for
what happened. Once that determination is made, there should be an appropriate
measure of accountability, including potential disciplinary action. The management and
funding of the counternarcotics plane should be used as a prime example of the need to
head off this waste.

Your cooperation with my oversight work is always appreciated. I look forward to
your answer,

Sincerely,

(Unireh

Charles E. Grassley
Chairman
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